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New Delhi DL-110020

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of B.GXK.
INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOERS PRIVATELIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows, and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as Ind AS Financial Statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2021, the
profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Ind AS financia! statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that -the ‘awdit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements. ( 3
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Our opinion on these matters for each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the Ind AS financial statement section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit includes the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risk of
material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statement. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Sr. No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

Principal Audit Procedure

Taxation Significant judgments
are required in determining
provision of income taxes, both
current and deferred, as well as
the assessment of provision for
uncertain tax position including
estimates of interest and
penalties where appropriate.

We evaluated the design and implementation of
controls in respect of provision for current tax and the
recognition and recoverability of deferred tax assets.
We discussed with management the adequate
implementation of policies and control regarding
current and deferred tax.

We examined the procedure in place for the current
and deferred tax calculation for completeness and

valuation and audited the related tax computation and
estimates in the light of our knowledge of the tax
circumstances. Our work was conducted with our tax
specialist.

We performed the assessment of the material
components impacting the tax expenses, balance and
exposures. We reviewed and challenged the
information reported by components with the support
of our own local tax specialist, where appropriate.

In respect of deferred tax assets and liabilities, we
assess the appropriateness of management’s
assumptions and estimates to support deferred tax
assets for tax losses carried forward and related
disclosures in financial statements. Based on the
procedure performed above, we obtained sufficient
audit evidence to corroborate management’s
estimates regarding current and deferred tax balances.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this Auditor’s Report. Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information i matenal]y inconsistent with the
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financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charges with Governance for the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalonelnd AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the company of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
OT eITor.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the board of directors is responsible for the assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and.the-opgrating effectiveness of such
controls. o ;



e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Ind AS financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure ‘A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.



{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

{(c) The Balance Sheet, and the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) The requirements of clause (i) of sub section (3) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013;
with regard to applicability of adequacy of internal financial control over financial reporting
and the operating effectiveness of such control are not applicable to the Company, since the
Company is a private company and is exempted from reporting vide clause 9A of
Notification dated 13 June 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

(g) With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16} of the Act, as amended, the reporting requirements are not
applicable since the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements.

(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts

including derivative contracts

(iii)  There were no amount which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For V.R. Bansals & Associates

Chartered Accountants  + —
Firm Registration No. 016534N

Rajan Bansal

Place: Delhi Mexbgrship No: 093591
Dated: 31/05/2021 UDIN: 21093591AAAANDS81438



Annexure- A Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date

Re: B.G.K Infrastructure Developers Private Limited (the company)

1.

10.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

{(b) The Company has a phased periodical programme of physical of all fixed assets, which in our
opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) As per explanation given to us, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of
the company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. [n our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, firms, Limited Liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained Under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 & Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(a), (b) and (c) are not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
any loans or made any investments, Accordingly, the provision of clause (4) is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits as per the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act and the rules framed there under,

In our opinion, cost records as specified by the Central Government under section 143(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, are not required to be maintained by the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Excise, Value Added
Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and any other undisputed statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities, There are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at 31st March, 2021, concerned
for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not liable to pay any
dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or goods and services tax duty of customs or duty of
excise or value added tax or goods services tax on account of any dispute

As per information available to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any
financial institution or Bank or Government as at balance sheet date. The Company has not issued
any debentures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial
public offer/further public offer (including debt instruments) and has not taken any fresh term
loan; therefore, clause (9) is not applicable to the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud/ material fraud on the Company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.



11,

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

No managerial remuneration has been paid or provided during the year, therefore clause (11) is
not applicable Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of this clause
3(12) of the order are not applicable to the company.

As per the information given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(14) are not applicable to the Company and not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with him.

The company is not required to be registered under sections 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For V.R. Bansals & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 016534N =<

Place: Delhi Membership No: 093591

Dated: 31/05/2021 UDIN:

093591AAAANDS148



B.G.K. INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

Notes As at As at
No 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rs."Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2,085.00 2,170.72
Capital work in progress 3 61.80 63.12
Intangible assets 4 061 25.24
Financial assets
Other financial assets 5.1 298,32 298.32
Other non-curment assets 6 10.04) 15.00
2,455.73 2,572.40
Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7.1 38.23 222.65
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 72 7713 26.7M4
(iii) Other balances with banks 73 86.55 83.14
(iv) Other financial assets 7.4 0.25 9.05
Current tax assets (Net) 3 2245 4).97
Other current assets 9 59.56 46.97
284.17 429.52
Asset classified as held for sale 10 119.07 119.07
Total Assets 2,858.97 3.120.99
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11 1,397.23 1,397.23
Other equity 12 36.97 4741
1,494.20 1,444.64
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
{1) Borrowings 13.1 670.95 885.94
(ii) Other financial liabilities 13.2 - 5.66
Provisions 4 8.18 10.77
Other non-current liabilities 15 229.76 240.69
908.89 1,143.06
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings 16.1 - 41.02
(i1} Trade payables 16.2
- dues of micro and small enterprises 0.28 3.43
- dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 3.67 131.34
{iii) Other financial liabilities 16.3 284.75 250.20
Other current liabilities 17 167.08 107.15
Provisions 18 .10 013
455.88 533.29
Total Equity and Liabilities 3.120.99
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations 25
Other notes on accounts 26

For V.R. Bansal & Associates
Chantered Accountants

IC AL Regz' tration No.; :

smbership No.: 093591 & 1
ce: New Delhi Gatrav Jain Mo
Date: May 31, 2021 Chief Financial Otticer Company Secretary-M. No..FCS-8015

For and on behalf of Board of Director

|}

Maneeesh Mnnsi"ng?a?
Director (DIN: 00031476)




B.G.K. INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note Period ended Year ended
No 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(Rs.'"Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
I Income
Revenue from operations 19 415.62 365.68
Other income 20 18.00 38.35
Total Income 433.62 404.03
I1 Expenses
Purchase of traded goods 101.97 -
Employee benefits expense 21 31.39 37.25
Finance costs 22 94.54 116.38
Depreciation and amortization expenses 23 91.96 127.04
Other expenses 24 64.25 84.32
Total Expenses . 384.11 364.99
I Profit/ (Joss} before exceptional items and tax 49.51 39.04
Exceptional items = -
[V Profit/ (loss) before tax 49.51 39.04
V Tax expenses
Current tax : &
Income tax expense 3 R
V1 Profit/ (loss) for the year from continuing operations 49.51 39.04
Profit / (loss) for the year froin discontinued operations [refer note 26(7)] 271 73.63
VIl Profit/ (loss) for the year 46,74 112.67
VIl Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit ot loss in
subsequent periods
i) Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 0.63 {1.9n
iiy Income tax effect [(expense)/ income] - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.63 (1.91)
IX Total comprehensive income/ {loss) for the year, net of tax 47.37 110,76
X Earnings per equity share (nominal value of share Rs.10/-) 26
For continuing operations
Basic (Rs.) 0.35 0.28
Diluted (Rs.) 0.35 0.28
For discontinued operations
Basic (Rs.) (0.02) 0.53
Diluted (Rs.) 0.02) 0.53

For continuing and discontinued operations

Basic (Rs.}

Diluted (Rs.)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations 25
Other notes on accounts 26

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

= . For and on behalf of Board of Di

Y N

R
Maneeesh Mansingka
Director (DIN: 00031476)

For V.R. Bansal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

g »Jurav Jain
Date: May 31, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary-M.No.:FCS-8015



B.G.K. INFRASTRUCTURE DEYELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

PARTICULARS

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITTIES
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses
[nterest income
Interest expense
Loss on disposal of asscts
Guarantee fecs paid
Bank Charges
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustment for
Increase/{ Decrease) Other Long Term Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) Long Term Provisions
Increase/( Decrease) Trade Payables
Increase/{ Decrease) Other Current Liabilities
Increasef{ Decrease) Other Current Financial Liabilities
Increase/{Decrease) in Short Term Provisions
(Increase)Decrease in Other Non Current Financial Assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non Current Assets
{Increase)Decrease in Trade Receivables
{Increase}/Decrease in Other Current Assets
{Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Financial Assets

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Less: Income Tax paid {net of TDS and refunds)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities

B. Cash Flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets including capital work in progress
Sale of fixed assets
Advances against sale of land
Proceeds from fixed deposits with bank (net)
Net Cash from/(used in) investing activities

C. Cash Flow from Financing activities
Proceeds from short term borrowings
Proceeds from long lerm borrowings
Finance costs

Net cash from/{used) in financing activities

Net increase or (decrease) in cash or cash equivalents(A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes ¢

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rs."Lakhs) (Rs."Lakbs)
46.74 112.67
91.96 127.20
{5.9%} (5.73)
75.59 93.13
1.63 ~
15.65 15.65
0.35 (.29
22593 34321
{10.92) {10.92)
(1.96) (6.50)
(130.83) $0.48
(15.07) (5.83)
{49.28) 50.55
(0.05) (0.69)
- 0.04
5.00 {4.95)
18442 {150.65)
12.39 (2.50)
8.80 {8.30)
228,43 283.94
{6.46) 83.135
221.97 367.09
0.27) (19.14)
0.69 -
75.00 75.00
2.58 (.66
78.00 56.52
(41.02) {131.36)
{116.97} (143.34)
(91.59) (109.07)
(249.58) (403.77)
50.39 19.84
26.74 6.90
7113 26.74

1 The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7, "Statement

of Cash Flows™.




B.G.K, INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

As at As at
PARTICULARS 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs.'Lakhs}
2 Components of cash and bank balances
Cash on hand 0.21 0.19
Balance with banks:
Current accounts 21.86 26.55
Fixed deposits accounts with original maturity less than 3 months 33.06 -
7713 26.74

Effect of exhange differences on cash and cash equivalents held in foreign curency - .
Totat cash and bank balances at the end of the year (Note-7.2)

As per our report of even date

For ¥.R. Bansal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Registration No.; 016534
L3 .'r )

—\
Maneeesh Mansingka
Director (DIN: 00031476)

by ,
shipNo. 093591 ==’ k})-.r
Gudr

ew Dclhi av Jain
May 31, 2021 Chief Financial Officer




B.G.K. INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

A) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Nos. {Rs.'Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2019 1,39,72,300 1,397.23
Add: Change in equity share capital during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 1,39,72,300 1,397.23
Add: Change in equity share capital during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 1,39,72,300 1,397.23
B) Other Equity
{Rs.'Lakhs)
Reserves & Surplus
Particulars Securities Retained Total
Premium Earnings
As at March 31,2019 414.45 (477.80) (63.35)
Net profit/ (loss) for the year - 112.67 112.67
Other comprehensive income for the year
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax) - {1.91) {1.91)
As at March 31, 2020 414.45 (367.04) 47.41
Net profit/ (loss) for the year - 46.74 46.74
Other comprehensive income for the year
IndAS 116 adjustments 219 2,19
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax) - 0.63 0.63
As at March 31, 2021 41445 {317.48) 96.97
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations 25
Other notes on accounts 26
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
For V.R. Bansal & Associat 1 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants AU

IGAL chisqa{inn No.: 016 4

=]

rship No.: 093591 w
»: New Delhi Gatrfav Jain

A ) ™

Maneeesh Mansirlgiz}
Director (DIN: 0003 1476)

Monik __(_}_upta
Company Secretary-M.No.:FCS-80135

ay 31, 2021 Chief Financial Officer




BGK INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

I CORPORATE INFORMATION

B.G K. Infrastructure Developers Private Limited {*the Company’) is a Private Limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated on
27th December, 2007 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of
construction, development, acquisition, establishment and maintenance of warchouses and godowns. The business of clearing and
forwarding services has been discontinued. The Registered Office address of the Company has been changed from A - 35, Brij Greens,
Chhatarpur Road, Satbari to A - 63, Second Floor, F.1.E.E. Complex, Okhla Industrial Area Phase II, New Delhi - 110020 w.e.f 1st day of
April 2019.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting polices adopted m the preparation of the standalone financial statement. These
polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherswise stated.

201

2.02

203

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified
under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)y Rules, 2015. For all periods including the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 {Indian GAAP). The financial
statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 31, 2021,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in accounting policies subsequenily.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated wsing another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and / or  disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind
AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or
value in us¢ in Ind AS 36.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balance of assets and liabilities, disclosure relating to
contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of income and expense for the period.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Revision of accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimates are revised and future period affected.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilitics in the financial statement with current / non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

(a} expecied to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

{b} held primarily for purpose of trading

(c} expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to sentie a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
(a) Iuis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
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(b)Y 1t is held primarily for purpose of trading
{c) ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
{(d} There is no unconditional right to defer the settlernent of the liability for at least twelve months after the repotting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents.
The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company has applied the following amendments to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1
April 2020:

i} Definiticn of Material — amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8

ii) Definition of a Business — amendments io Ind AS 103

i) COVID-19 related concessions - amendments to [nd AS 116

The amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect
the current or future periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised in accordance with Ind AS 23 - Borrowing costs. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Fixtures and equipment are stated af cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are capitalised at costs relating to the acquisition and installation (net of Cenvat , VAT and GST
credits wherever applicable) and include finance cost on borrowed funds attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets for
the period up to the date when the asset is ready for its intended use, and adjustments arising from foreign exchange differences
arising on foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. Other incidental
expenditure atiributable to bringing the fixed assets to their working condition for intended use are capitalised. Subsequent
expenditure relating to fixed assets is capitalised only if such expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits from such
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost or valvation of assets (other than propertics under construction) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the Straight-Line Method, The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on
their respective useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equiptment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised
in profit and loss as incured.

The estimated useful life considered for the assets are as under:

Assets Useful life (in years}
Leasehold Land 95
Buildings 30-60

Roads g

Plant and Machinery 15
Fumiture and Fittings 10

Vehicles 10
Computers 3

Elctricat Installations 10

Office Equipment 3

Fire Fighting System 15
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Components televent to fixed assets, where significant, are separately depreciated on strainght line basis in terms of their life span
assessed by technical evaluation in item specified context.

Leasehold land are depreciated on straight ling basis over the uncxpired period of their respective lease period of 95 years.

The residual values, usefisl lives and methods of depreciation of properiy, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets including software licenses of enduring nature and contractual rights acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impainment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference behween the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life of 4 years.
Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assets of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of ancther entity.

i} Finmancial Assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
{a) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit & loss).
{b) Those measured at amortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit and loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets. Purchase or sale of financial
asset that requive delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or conversion in the market place {regular
way trades} are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase and sell the assets.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurerment financial assets are classified in following categories:
{a) Debt instruments at amortized cost

{b) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQCI)

(c) Debt instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

{d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
{e) Equity instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the statement of profit and loss (i.e.
fair value through profit or loss), or recognized in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive
income). For investment in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investment in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for equity instruments at FYTOCT.

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A Debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: q s

Vv
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(i) Business Model Test: The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

(ii) Cashflow Characterstics Test: Contractual terms of asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on principal amount outstanding.

Afier initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) methed. Amortised cost is catculated by taking imto account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in statement of profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to wade, other
receivables, loans and other financial assets.

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI
A 'debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOC] if both of the following criteria are met:

(i) Business Model Test: The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and

(iiy Cashflow Characterstics Test: The asset's contarctual cash flows represent SPP1.

Debt instrument included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive imcome (OCD). However, the group recognises interest
income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On dereognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from the equity to stalement of profit & loss.
Interest eamned whilst holding FVTOCT debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method..

Debt instruments at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as
at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL,

In adition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria,
as at FVTPL. However, such ¢lection is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as "accounting mismatch’}, The Corpany has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.,

Equity investments of other entities

All equity investments in scope of IND AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are
classified as at FYTPL. For all other equity insiruments, the Company may make an irrevocable efection to present in other
comprehensive income all subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

In case of equity instruments classified as FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCT. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profit and loss.

Derecogrition

A financial asset (or ,where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised when:

(a) The right to reccive cash flows from the assets have expired, or

(b} The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party wnder a "pass through” arrangement and either:
(i) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
{ii) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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i)

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a passthrough
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. Where it has neither
transferred not retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assets, nor transferred control of the assets, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred assets to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the
Coinpany also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) mode] for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial asset and credit risk exposure:

{a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost e.g. loans, debt securities, deposists, trade receivables and bank balance:

{b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income(FYTOCD);

{¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are
within the scope of Ind AS 18

{(d) Financial guaraniee contracts which are not measured at FYTPL

The Company follows "simplified approach® for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

{a} Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables:
(b} All lease receivables resulting from the transactions within the scope of IND AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, tight from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment foss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is wsed to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity revents to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12- months ECL

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12
months afier the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the entity expects 1o receive {ie., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the
cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

(#) Financial assets measured 2s at amortised cost, contractual revenpue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.¢., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment
allowance from the gross carrying amount,

{b) Debt instroments measured at FYTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance
is not further reduced from its value.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared
credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit
risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

All financial liabilitics are recognised intially at fair value and in case of loans, borrowings and payables, net of directly
atiributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables.
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Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Trade Payables

These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are uwsually paid within 120 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilitics unless payment is not due within 12 months afier the reporting period. They are recognized
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR method.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company, After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or medication is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Reclassification of financial assets:

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial asseis which
are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the
business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are
evident o external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an
activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains
or losses) or interest,

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for -
Original classification Revised classification Accounting treatment

Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference
between previous amortized cost and fair value is
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

FVTPL Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date become its new gross
carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new gross
carrying amount.

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference
between previous amortised cost and fair value is
recognised in OCL No change in EIR due 1o
reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
amortised cost carrying amount. However, cumulative
gain or loss in OCIl is adjusted against fair value
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always
been measured at amortised cost.
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Original classification Revised classification Accounting treatment

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required,

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified to
statement of profit and loss at the reclassification date.

Offsetting of financial instroments:
Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently

enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultangously.

2,08 Taxes

Tax expense for the year comprises of direct tax and indirect tax.

Direct Taxes

a)

(b

Current Tax

(i) Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities tn accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that ar¢ enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India as per [ncome Computation and Disclosure
Standards (ICDS) where the Company operates and generaies taxable income,

(ii) Current income tax relating to item recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehbensive income or equity).Current tax items are recognized in coerelation to the underlying
transactions either in statement of profit and loss or directly in equity, Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax retumns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the camry forward of unused tax credits and vnused tax
losses can be utilized, except.

{a)} When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the tetnporary differences will reverse in the foresceable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferted tax assets ts reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of profit
and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity), Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or direct in equity.
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Deferred Tax includes Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e. the period for
which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each
reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal
tax during the specified period,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation anthority.

Indirect Taxes

Goods and Sevice Tax has been accounted for in respect of the goods cleared. The Company is providing Goods and Sevice tax
liability in respect of finished goods. GST has been also accounted for in respect of services rendered.{w.e.f. 1st July, 2017 GST
has been implemented. All the taxes like Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, ete. are subsummed in Goods and Service Tax.)

Revenue Recogoition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and exciuding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Amounts disclosed are net of retums, trade discounts, rebates and amount collected on behalf of third partics.

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent.
The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the
Tevenue arrangements as it has pricing fatitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks, The specific recognition criteria
deseribed below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

a} Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recogmised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods and there are no unfulfilled obligations.

The Company considers, whether there are other promises in the contract in which their are separate performance obligations,
to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocared. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the
Company allocates a portion of the Iransaction price o different performance obligations goods bases on its relative
standalone prices and also considers the following:-

i) Variable Consideration;

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of goods measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of retums and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. If the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
ihe associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

(ii) Significant Financing Components

In respect of short-term advances from its customers, using the practical expedient in [nd AS 115, the Company does not
adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract
inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service 1o the customer and when the customer pays
for that good or service will be within normal operating cycle. In respect of long term contracts, the transaction price for
these contracts is discounted, using the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e., the interest rate that discounts the cash
selling price of the equipment to the amount paid in advance),

b} Sale of services

Revenue from Clearing and Forwarding services are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured and there exists no significant uncertainty with regard to
collection of the same. The Company collects goods and service tax (GST) on behalf of the Government and, therefore, these
are not economic benefits flowing to the Company and hence are excluded from revenue.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the geods or services are transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
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i) Yariable Consideration:

IT the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it
will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved, Some
contracts for the sale of electronics equipment provide customers with a right of return and volume rebates. The rights of
return and volume rebates give rise to variable consideration,

ii} Contract Assets:

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the eamned consideration that is conditional.

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c., only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due).

¢}  Warehouse Income

Warehouse income is recognised to the extent due under the terms of lease or agreements / arrangements entered with the
concerned parties and there exisis no significant uncertainty with regard to collection of the same.

d) Interest

[nterest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest
rates.

Non-current assets held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale
rather than through continuing use and the sale is considered highly probable. Such non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell . Any expected loss is recognized immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the assets is available for immediate sale in its present
condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets, its sale is highly probable; and it will
genuinely be sold. The Company treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when;

i) The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset

ii) An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable)

iif) The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value

iv) The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification , and

v} Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the
plan will be withdrawn

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for
immediate sale in its present condition and the assets must have actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in refation to
its current fair value. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan to
sale these assets will be made. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized. Assets and
liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the balance sheet.

Retirement and other Employee benefiis
Short-term employee benefits and defined contribution plans
All employee benefits payable/ available within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short-term employee

benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc. are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
the employes renders the related services.
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Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme, The Company has no ebligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an
expense, when an employee renders the related services. If the contribution payable to scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability afier
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excesses recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to , for example , a reduction
in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity (Unfunded)

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method.

The Company recognises termination benefit as a liability and an expense when the Company has present oblligation as a result of
past gvents, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the
balance sheet date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the discount rate determined by reference to
market yields at the balance sheet date on governments bonds.

Re-measurements, comprising of actwarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the retum on the planned assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
eamings through OCI1 in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of :

{a) The date of the plan amendment or curtailiment, and
(b) The date that the Comoany recognises related restructuring cost

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss:

(a) Service cosis comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on curtailments, and
(b) Net interest expenses or mcome

Compensated Absences

Accumlated leave, which is expected to be utilised within next 12 months, is treated as short term employee benefit. The Company
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that
has accumlated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumlated leave expected to be carried forward beyond 12 months, as long-term employee benefit for
measurement purposes. Such long-term comopensated absences are provided for based on the acturial valuation using the projected
unit credit method ai the period end. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are immediately taken to the
Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deffered. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet to the
extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date, Where Company has the
unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-
current liability.

Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company after adjusting impact of
dilution shares by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares,
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other
borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they occur.

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds and charged to Statement of
Profit & Loss on the basis of effective interast rate {EIR} method. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing cost.

Impairment of non- financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows thai are largely
independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. [n determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples , quoted share prices for publicaly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment,
depreciation is provided on the revised cartying amount of the asset over its remaining vseful life.

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Sepment accounting
Based on "Management Appoarch” as defined in [nd AS 108- Operating Segments, the executive Management Commities
evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by

business segments.

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting
the financial statements of the Comparry as a whole.

Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in

which the entity operates ( 'the functional currency').

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at
the date of the iransaction.

Measurement of foreign currency items at the balance sheet date
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Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the Ffair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non- monetary items measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item {ie., translation differences on
items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which they anise,

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Company as » lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shori-term leases and leases of low-

value assets, The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing, the right o use
the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.€., the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incured, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated vseful lives of the building (i.e. 30 and
60 years)

1f ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The righi-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.
Refer to the accouniing policies in section 'lmpairment of non-financial assets’.

{b) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
valug guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs,

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made, [n addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes
to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset,

{c } Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases {i.e., those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). [t also applies the lease of low-value assets
recoghition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Company as a lessor
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Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating Jease. Leases in which the Company does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the fease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Government Grants

Govemment Grants are recognized at their fair valug when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all the
attached conditions will be complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs,
for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed, When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts

over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the assct and grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to
profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset

or transfer the liability takes place either:

{i} In the principal market for asset or liability, or
{ii} In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All asscts and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted{unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occumred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing categorization { based on the lowest level input that is

significant to fair value measurement as a whole ) at the end of each reporting pericd.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the assct or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,
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The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circwnstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Judegments

[n the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

a)

a)

b)

¢}

d)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of
revenue from contracts with customers;

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the expected value method or the most likely
amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled. The Company
determined that the expected value method is the appropriate method to use in estimating the variable consideration for
revenue from operation, given the large number of customer contracts that have similar characteristics.Before including any
amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the amount of variable
consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based
on its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable
consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

Gratuity benefit

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations. An actvarial valvation
involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity
of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount
rai¢, management considers the interest rates of long term government bonds with exirapolated maturity corresponding, o the
expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the
specific countries. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective
countries. Further details about the assumptions used, including a sensitivity analysis, are given in note no.26(5).

Fair valve measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow
(DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible. a
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as hquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

Impairment of Financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the
Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
Company's past history ,existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-Financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
assets recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in vse. [t is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
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In assessing value in use | the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. [n determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be idemtified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.

COVID-19 Impact on Estimates, Judgemnets , Revenue & Financial instruments

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-19):-

The Company has assessed the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying
amounts of Receivables, [nventories and other assets / liabilities. tn developing the assumptions relating to the possible future
uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these
financial results has used internal and external sources of Information. As on current date, the Company has concluded that the
Impact of COVID - 19 is not material based on these estimates. Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue
to monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties In future periods, if any. The impact of COVID-19 on the
Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

Loss allowance for receivables and unbilled revenuves:-

The Company determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical loss experience adjusted to reflect current and
estimated fufure economic conditions. The Company considered current and anticipated future economic conditions relating to
industries the company deals with and the countries where it operales. In calculating expected credit loss,the Company has
also considered credit reports and other related credit information for its customers to estimate the probability of default in
future and has taken into account estimates of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID -19,

Revenue from Operations:-

The Company has evaluated the impact of COVID - |9 resulting from (i} the possibility of constraints to render services
which may require revision of estimations of costs to complete the contract because of additional efforts:(ii} onerous
obligations;(iii) penalties relating to breaches of service level agreements, and (iv) termination or deferment of contracts by
customers. The Company has concluded that the impact of COVID - 19 is not material based on these estimates. Due to the
nature of the pandemic, the Company will continus to monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties relating to
revenue in future periods.

Cash and Cash Equivatents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flow, cash & cash equivalents consists of cash and short term deposits as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered as integral part of Company's cash management.

Standards issued but not effective
There are no standards that are issued but not yet effective on March 31, 2021
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5 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

5.1 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
At amortised cost
{Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits
Subsidy deposit (refer note no.: 26(3)}

Notes:
{i} Security deposits includes deposits with electricity and water departments.

6 OTHER NON- CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good}
Deposits with Statatory/ Government authorities

Notes:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rs.'Lakhs} {Rs.'Lakhs)
0.93 (.93

297.39 297.39

298.32 298.32

10.00 15.00

10.00 15.00

{i} No amounts are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. No amounts

are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

(ii) Deposits with Statutory/ Government authorities includes deposits with Vishakhapatnam Port Trust and other miscellancous

deposits with government authorities.
7 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

7.1 TRADE RECEIYABLES
Trade receivables considered good - Secured
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured
Trade Reczivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade Receivables - credit impaired
Trade receivables (gross)
Less: Impairment allowance for trade receivables considered doubtful

Notes:

3823 222.65
38.23 222.65
38.23 222,65

(i} Trade receivables are usually non-interest bearing and are on trade terms of 10 to 45 days.
(i} No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person,
Trade receivables due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member

are as under;

Tinna Trade Limited (the Holding Company upto 30-Mar-21)
Tinna Rubber and Infrastructure Limited

Shree Shubham Logistics Ltd.

T P Buildtech Private Limited

Fratelli Wines Private Limited

(iii) The movement in impairment allowance as per ECL model is as under:
Balance as at beginning of the year
Impairment allowance during the year
Balance as at end of the year

7.2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks
Current accounts
Fixed deposits accounts with original maturity less than 3 menths
Cash on hand

Note:

- 6793
- 32.63
4.53 6.90
- 1.52
0.70 0.79
523 109.77
21.86 26.55
55.00 -
0.21 019
77.13 26.74

(i) There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior periods.
(ii) Depending on immediate cash requirements of the Company, the short term deposits for varying period upto 3 months were

{j/-, . classified as cash and cash equivalent




B.G.K. INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

7.3 OTHER BANK BALANCES
Fixed deposits with banks under lien with Government authorities
having a original maturity period of more than twelve months
Fixed deposits pledged with bank against borrowings having a original
maturity period of more than twelve months

Notes:

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs.’Lakhs)
1.23 2.33
85.32 80.81

$6.55 83.14

(i} The deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprises of time deposits made of varying periods between three
months to twelve months and eam interest at the respective short term deposit rates.
(i) Fixed deposits with original maturity period of more than twelve months but remaining maturity of less than twelve months

have been disclosed under other bank balances.

7.4 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated (at amortised cost)
Security deposits*
Other receivables**

Notes:

* Security deposits includes deposits with service providers for container liner, office rent and others.

** (ther receivables includes receivable from creditors and others

8 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Tax deducted at source {TDS)

9 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good)
Income tax refund due
Others
Prepaid expenses
Balance with Statutory / Government authorities
Other advances

Notes:

0.25 395
= 5.10
0.25 9.05
2245 40.97
2245 40.97
48.71 23.73
197 1.28
336 11.50
052 1046
59.56 46.97

(i) No amounts are due to directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person.
Mo amobnts are due to firms or private Companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or @ member.

(iiy Balance with Statutory / Governument authorities are in respect of balance in GST account receivable.

(tii) Other advances include outstanding balance in advance for purchase of traded goods, and advance with siaff, port, CHD and

custom departments.
10 ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
{Property plant and equipment)
Asset retired from intended use {refer note below)

Note:

119.07

119.07

119.07

119.07

The Company classified certain assets retired from intended use and held for sale recognised and measured in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard 105 on “Non Currenct Asset Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” at lower of its carrying amount and

fair value. The Company expects to complete the sale by July 31, 2021 by selling it.

%
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As at As at

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
(Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs.'Lakhs)

11 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

a) Authorized

150,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each {previous year 150,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- 1,500.00 1.500.00
each)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

1,39,72,300 equity shares of Rs.10/- each {previous year 1,39,72,300 equity shares of Rs.10/. 1,397.23 1,397.23
cach)

b} Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
No. of shares {Rs."Lakhs) No. of shares (Rs.'Lakhs)
At the beginning of the year 1,39,72,300 1,397.23 1,39,72,300 1,397.23
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 1,39,72,300 1,397.23 1.39.72,300 1,397.23

¢) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share (March 31,2020: Rs.10/- per share).
Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the helders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company after disiribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held
by the sharcholders.

Dividend, if proposed by the Directors to Shareholders, is subject to approval by the members in Annual General Mecting

d} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company is set out below (representing legal and beneficial

ownership):
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Name of Sharcholders No.ofshares % holding  No.ofshares % holding
Tinna Trade Limited 69,20,000 49,53 72,00,000 51.53
S1AM Stock Holdings Limited 23,30,238 16.68 23,30,238 16.68
Geepee Softech Services Private Limited 13,79.201 987 13,79,201 9.87
Insurexcellence Advisors Private Limited 24,52.300 17.55 24.52.300 17.55

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/metnbers and other declarations received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholdingrepresents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

11,00,000 equity shares held by Geepee Softech Private Limited; 2,56,840 equity shares held by Insurexcellence Advisors
Private Limited and 28,34,850 equity shares held by Tinna Trade Limited are pledged to ICICI Bank Limited for credit facilities
availed by the Company,

8,57,598 equity shares held by Insurexcellence Advisors Private Limited and 20,76,585 equity shares held by Tinna Trade
Limited are encumbered under Non Disposal Underiaking and Power of Attorney to NDU agent M/s 1DBI Trusteeship Services
Limited for the facility of Rs.15.65 Cr sanctioned by [ICIC1 Bank Limited.

e) Aggregate number of shares bought back, or issued as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being
received in cash or by way of bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the date of Balance

As at Asat
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
No. of shares Ne. of shares
Equity shares Fully paid-up pursuant to contract(s) without payment received in cash Nil Nil
Fully paid by way of bonus shares Nil
Shares bought back Nil

%)
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12 OTHER EQUITY
Securities Premium
Retained Earnings

Notes:

a) Securities Premium
Opening balance
Received during the year

b) Retained Earnings
Opening balance
Net profit/ {loss) for the year
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained
earnings
IndAS 116 adjustments
Re-measurement gains/ {losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax)

¢) Nature a2nd purpose of reserves

Security Premium

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rs."Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
414,45 414.45
(317.48) {367.04)
26.97 47.41
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

414,45 414.45
414.45 414.45
(367.04) (477.80)
46.74 112.67
2.19 .

0.63 (1.91)
(317.48) (367.04)

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securities premium, In case of equity settled
share based payment transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and nominal value of share is accounted as
securities premium reserve. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings are profit the company has earned till date less transfer to General Reserve, dividend or other distribution or

transaction with sharcholders.
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As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
13 NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
13.1 LONG TERM BORROWINGS
SECURED (at amortised cost)
a) Term loan from Bank

ICIC1 Bank Limited 670.95 £85.94
670.95 885.94

Notes:
Term Loan from Bank {Secured)

I The Company has been sanctioned a term loan of Rs. 1,565 lakhs by ICICI Bank Ltd. vide their letter dated 30/08/2013 for
the purpose of construction of warchouses (for storage of agricultural commodities). The term loan is payable in 120
monthly installments {including 18 months moratorium period) commencing from 3 1st July 2015 as under :-

8 monthly installments of Rs.5 lakhs each

12 monthly installments of Rs.7.50 lakhs each
18 monthly installments of Rs.1{ lakhs each
12 monthly installments of Rs.12.50 lakhs each
6 monthly installemnts of Rs.15 lakhs each

6 monthly installments of Rs.17.50 lakhs each
12 monthly installments of Rs.18 lakhs each
12 monthly installments of Rs.20 [akhs each
6 monthly installments of Rs.23 lakhs each

6 monthly installments of Rs 28 lakhs each

4 monthly installments of Rs,37 lakhs each

The Company has availed the moratorium for repayment of Term Loan installment from Apr 1, 2020 till Aug 31, 2020

2 The interest payable shall be the sum of "MCLR plus spread" per annum calculated on Effective [nterest Rate {EIR)
method, The interest would be payable monthly on the last date of each month starting from the date of disbursement.

3 a) The above loan is secured by :-

(i) Exclusive charge on Company’s entire stocks of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable
stores and spares situated at present and future premise of the Company and such other movables including book-
debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables, both present and future, in a form and
manner satisfactory to the Bank,

(ii) Exclusive charge on the movable fixed assets of the company save and except financed by other banks and
financial institutions.

(iii) Equitable mortgage on property at Plot B - 14, Additional Yavatmal Industrial Area, Distt, Yavatmal, Maharashira
having value of Rs.150.00 lakhs (total area 442472.72 sq ft approx.).

(iv) Equitable mortgage on property situated at Plot No. X — 1, C.G.G.C. Akola Industrial Area, Dist Akola,
Maharashtra having value of Rs.287.00 lakhs (total area 383513.3 sq fi approx.).

{v) Equitable mortgage on property situated at Plot No X - 1, Washim (G.C.) Industrial Area, Dist Washim,
Maharashtra having value of Rs 86.00 lakhs (total area 430421.52 sq ft approx.).

by The loan is further secured by way of additional security of pledge of 30% of paid up share capital and Non-Disposal-
Undertaking under Power of Attomey of 21% of paid up share capital of B.G K. Infrastructure Developers Pvi. Lid.
and
Uncenditional and irrevocable personal guarantees of Shri Gaurav Sekhri and Shri Maneesh Mangsingka and corporate
guarantees of Tinna Rubber and Infrastructure Limited and Insurexcellence Advisors Private Limited.

4 There is no default in repayment of term loan and interest during the year and the Company has complied with loan
covenants of the lenders.

5 Current maturities of term loan are as under:

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs.'Lakhs)

Current maturities of long term debt 224 40 126.38

6 The effective rate of interest on term bomrowings ranges between 10.50% to 11.25% p.a. p.a. during the year, depending
upon the Marginal Cost of Funds based Lending Rate (MCLR) of the banks and financial institutions time to time,
whergver applicable, and interest rate spread agreed with the banks
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As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs."Lakhs)
13.2 OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Lease liability (refer note 26(2)) - 5.66
= 5.66
14 NON CURRENT PROVISIONS
Provision for employee benefits (refer note no 26(5))
Gratuity 572 6.24
Leave encashment 246 4.53
3.18 10,77
15 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred income (refer note no. 26(3)) 229.76 240.69
229.76 240.69
16 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
16.1 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Unsecured {At amortised cost)
Repayable on Demand
From Related Parties - 14.80
From Others - 2622
- 41.02
Notes;
(i) The effective rate of interest on intercorporate loan is 12% per annum.
{ii) Amounts dug to related parties are as under:
Kriti Estates Pvi. Etd. - 14.80
- 14.80
(iii) There are ne defaults in the repayment of borrowings and interest during the year
16.2 TRADE PAYABLES
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 0.28 343
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 3.67 131.34
3.95 134.77

Notes:

* Trade payables include due to related parties Rs Nil (previous year Rs.Nil}

* The amounis are unsecured and are usnally paid within 60 days of recognition.

* Trade payables are usually non- interest bearing. In few cases ,where the trade payables are interest bearing, the interest is
settled on quarterly basis.

(i} Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended March 31, 2021 is given below. This information has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

(a) |Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier covered under MSMED Act:

-Principal Rs.0.28 Lalkhs Rs.3.43 Lakhs
-Interest Nil Nil

(b) | The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section16, of the
MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to Nil Nil

the supplier bevond the appointed day during each accounting year.

{€) | The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
|making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day Nil Nil
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under

{(d} | The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of]

R Nil Nil
each accounting year.
(€) [ The amount of further interest remaining duc and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are Nl Nil

actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006
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As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)

ii} The information in respect of party determined under the MSMED Act 2006, has been identified on the basis of information
available with the Company.

iii) The totat dues of Micro and Small Enterprises which were outstanding for more than stipulated period are Rs.Nil {previous
year Rs.Nil)

16.3 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
At amortised cost

Current maturities of long-term debt (refer note 13) 224.40 12638
Security deposits from customers 31.40 29.4]
Lease liability (refer note 26(2)) - 19.34

Others
Employes benefit expenses 1.27 7.75
Other Payables* 27.68 67.32
284.75 250.20

Notes:

* Other payables are in respect of excess payment received from vessel agencies including audit fee, staff payments and
other miscellaneous expenses. It also includes amount payable to directors viz Mr Gaurav Sekhri - Rs.Nil (previous year
Rs 3.52 lakhs) and Mr Maneesh Mansingka - Rs.Nil (previous year Rs 3.52 lakhs) and to Companies in which directors
are directors or members viz M/s Tinna Rubber and [nfrastructure Limited - Rs Nil {previous year Rs 4.42 lakhs) and M/s
Insurexcellence Advisors Private Limited - Rs.Nil (Previous year Rs 3.72 lakhs).

17 OTHER CURRENT LIARBILITIES
Revenue received in advance

Advance payments from customers - 10.75
Others
Statutory dues payable 6.15 10.47
Deferred income 10.93 10.93
Other Payables £50.00 75.00
167.08 107.15
Notes:

(i} Statatory dues are in respect of TDS, GST, Professional Tax, PF and ESL.
(ii) Other Payables are in respect of advance received from proposed sale of Bihar Land (refer note 19}

18 CURRENT PROVISIONS
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 0.07 0.09
Leave encashment 0.03 0.06
0.10 0.15

Notes:

(i)  Provisions are recognized for Gratuity and Leave encashment. The provisions are recognized on the basis of past events and
probable settlements of the present cbligations as a result of the past evens, in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard-37
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India.

The movement of provision are as under:

At the beginning of the year

Gratuity (Mon Current Rs.6.24 Lakhs) 6.34 12.52

Leave encashment (Non Current Rs.4.53 Lakhs) 4.59 3.69
Arising during the year

Gratuity 0.59 1.79

Leave encashment 1.23 0.9¢
Utilised during the year

Gratuity 1.14 797

Leave encashment 3.33 -
Unused amount reversed

Gratuity - -

Leave encashment - -
At the end of the year

Gratuity {Non Current Rs.5.72 Lakhs) 6.34

_ Leave encashment (Non Current Rs.2.46 Lakhs) 4.59

)
s,




B.G.K. INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to linancial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

19 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of traded goods
Sale of services
Warehouse rental and storage income*
Other receipts from warehousing operations**

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 Marchk 2020
{Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs.'Lakhs)
103.00 =
310.14 363.13
2.48 2.55
415.62 365.68

Above excludes revenue from operations pertaining to discontinued operations [refer note no: 26(7)]
* Includes services rendered to associate company of Rs.51.10 Lakhs (previous year Rs.94.03 Lakhs) [refer note no: 26(8)]
** Includes services rendered to associate company of Rs.2.48 Lakhs (previous year Rs.2.55 Lakhs) [refer note no: 26(8)}

20 OTHER INCOME
Interest received on financial assets carried at amortised cost:

On bank deposits 5.39 5.73
On income tax refund 0.94 589
On others 025 -
Other non- operating incomg
Subsidy income 10.92 16.52
Rental income on amortisation of security deposit - 0.73
Miscellaneous income 0.00 5.48
18.00 3835
Above excludes other income pertaining to discontinued operations [refer note no: 26(7))
21 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salaries, wages, bonus, commission and other benefits 27.65 3238
Contribution towards PF, Family Pension and ESt 2.08 2.69
Gratuity expense 1.23 (0.12)
Staff welfare expenses 043 2.30
31.3% 31.28
Above excludes employee benefits expenses pertaining to discontinued operations [refer note no: 26{7)]
22 FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expense on
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Interest expense 75.59 9313
Interest on security deposit in 7.31
Guarantee fees paid 15.65 15.65
Others
Bank charges 19 0.29
94.54 116,38
Above excludes finance costs pertaining to discontinued operations [refer note no: 26(7)]
23 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
Depreciation of tangible assets 84.99 107.52
Amortization of intangible assets 6.97 19.52
91.96 127.04

Above excludes depreciation of tangible assets pertaining to discontinued operations [refer note no: 26(7))
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs,'Lakhs}
24 OTHER EXPENSES
Port services and stevedoring charges : =
Cargo handling expenses at port - -
Storage and commodity handling charges at warchouse 17.99 2800
Equipment hire charges - -
Office and warchouse rent 7.22 12.00
Rates and taxes 7.31 3.09
Repair and maintenance
Building 0.16 0.67
Others 1.93 3.05
Legal and professional charges 6.09 4.37
Travelling and conveyance 3.05 4.19
Transportation charges - :
Watch and ward expenses 11.23 13.97
Communication expenses 0.70 1.64
Payment to anditor
Audit fee 1.40 1.40
Tax audit fee = 0.25
Income tax matters 010 010
Certification fee 0.830 0.30
Goods and Service Tax E -
Electricity expenses 1.05 3.91
Insurance expenses 242 269
Advertisement, publicity and business promotion - 0.10
Loss on disposal of assets 1.63 -
Foreign exchange fluctuations - -
Miscellaneous expenses 1.17 4,49
64.25 84,32

Above excludes other expenses pertaining to discontinued operations [refer note no: 26(7)]




B.G.K Infrastructure Deevelopers Privatre Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2021

As At As At
31 March, 202t 31 March, 2020
{Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)

25 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A Bank guarantees obtained from banks - 3
{Margin money Rs.Nil (March 31, 2020: Rs.Nil)}

B Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed and ® -
not provided for (net of advances)

C Details of Leasing Arrangements (Company as Lessor)

a) The Company has entered into a cancellable sub- lease agreement to sublet a property situated at New Port Area, Kakinada, East
Godavari - 533007. The lease agreement was executed on 8th December, 2020. The said lease is for a term of six months w.e.f. from
08.12.2020 to 07.06.2021 for the purpose of enabling the Lessee to carry on its business and to use the Godown for Warehouse &
Office and for any other commercial purpose connected with the Lessee's business.

b) The Company has entered into operating lease agreement for warchouse buildings at Akola vide agreement dated 15th January, 2021
w.e.f. 15th January 2021 for 11.5 months and vide agreement dated 17th August, 2020 w.e.f. 1st July, 2020 for 11th months; at
Yavatmal vide agreement dated 15th October, 2020 w.e.f. 15th October, 2020 for 11 months and vide agreement dated 4th November,
2020 we.f. Ist October, 2020 for 11 months; and at Washim vide agreement dated 4th November, 2020 w.e.f. 1st December, 2020
for 7.5 months upto July 13, 2021,

¢) The total rent recognised as income during the year is Rs 266.08 Lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs 284.67 Lakhs).

d} The present value of minimum lease rentals receivable under cancellable and non- cancellable operating lease are as follows:

As At As At

31 March, 2021 31 March, 202¢

(Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.’Lakhs)

(i) not later than one year 12528 159.09
{i1) later than one year and not later than five years - -
{iii) later than five years - -

Present value of minimum lease payments 125.28 159.09

¢) Uncamed finance income Nil Nil
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26 OTHER NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

1 In the opinion of the Board of Directors, assets are stated at realizable value in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the
amount at which they are stated,

2 Leases

IndAS-116 Transition

(1} Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified IndAS-116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, IndAS-17
leases, and other interpretations. IndAS-116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. IndAS-116 requires lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all the leases
which conveys the right to use an asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Under IndAS-17, lease arrangements
where risk and rewards incidental to ownership of assets substantially vest 1o lessors were identified as operating leases. IndAS-
116 requires to recognise depreciation and interest cost instead of rent expenses as hitherto done under IndAS-17.

(i} The Company’s lease asset primarily consist of leases for warchouse building at Kakinada. Effective April 1, 2019, the
Company adopted IndAS-116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to all lease contracls existing on April 1, 2019 using the
modified retrospective method. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the remaining
lease paymenis discounted at the incremental borrowing rate as on the date of transition and has measured right of use asset at
an amount equal to lease liability adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease payments previously recognised.

(iii} The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

(a) Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end
daie.

(b) Applied the exemption not to recognize tight-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on
the date of initial application.

(¢} Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application,

(d) Applied the practical expedient by not reassessing whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial application.
Instead applied the standards only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under IndAS 17.

{e) Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options o extend or terminate the lease.

(iv} Following is camrying value of right of use assets recognised on date of transition and the movements thereof during the year
cnded March 31, 2021:

v

(Rs.'Lalkhs)
Particulars Right to use Asset Total
(Building}

Balance as at April 1, 2020 23.81 23.81
Transition impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 “Leases™ * -
Reclassified from property, plant and equipment on account of adoption of IndAS- E -
116 “Leases™
Reclassified from Eamest money and Security Deposits % a2
Total Right of Use om the date of transition 23.81 23.81
Additions during the year - -
Deletion during the year 17.66 17.66
Amortisation of Right of Use of assets 6.15 6.15
Balance as at March 31, 2021 = Z

The following is the carrying value of lease liability on the date of wansition and
March 31, 2021:

movement thereof during the year ended

(Rs.' Lakhs)
Particulars Lease Liability Total

Transition impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 “Leases™ 25.00 25.00
Additions during the year - -
Finance cost accrued during the year 0.10 0.1¢
Deletions 19.85 19.85
Payment of lease liabilities 5.25 5.25
Balance as at March 31, 2021 - =

Current maturities of Lease liability

Non-Current Lease Liability

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was Rs 7.22 Lakhs for the year ended March 31,2021,
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{vi}

Lease Liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March, 2021 (Rs.'Lakhs)
Maturity analysis- Undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year -
More than one year 5

Total) undiscounted lease tiabilities =

Lease liabilities included in financial position
Current =
Non Current -

{vii} The Company has occupied warehouse premises situated at Plot No 18, Warehousing Complex, New Port Area, Kakinada —

3 (i)

(ii)

533007 vide Licence agreement dated 10.07.2018. Given the lockdown due to Covid-19 conditions, above warehouse and port
cargo handling operations has come to a standstill. Therefore, the Company has vacated the premises mentioned above and
handed over to landlord on 31.07.2020 which is resulted in decrease in amortisation expense and finance cost by Rs 12.54
Lakhs and Rs 1.55 Lakhs respectively.

The Company is entitled to a Capital Subsidy of Rs 297.39 Lakhs under Rural Godown Scheme as Grameen Bhandaran Yojna
under the acgis of NABARD for construction of Rural Godowns which was extended upto FY 2013-14. The Company’s
godown situated at Akola, Yavatmal and Washim were entitled to capital subsidy under the aforesaid scheme. Accordingly, the
Company has complied with all the formalities and an application were made with the prescribed authority through IC1CT Bank
Ltd and after successful inspection conducted by Joint Inspection Committes (JIC) comprising of officers from NABARD,
ICICI Bank Ltd and Department of Marketing & Inspection (DM]1) the final subsidy amount was approved by NABARD. A
sum of Rs 152.60 Lakhs as advance {50%) subsidy and the balance sum of Rs 144.79 Lakhs as final (50%) subsidy was
disbursed by NABARD to ICICI Bank on May 9, 2017 and Feb 22, 2018 respectively. Accordingly, the Company has
recognised subsidy deposit and corresponding grant of Rs 150.11 Lakhs on Mar 31, 2017 and Rs 147.28 Lakhs on Feb 22, 2018
respectively. ICICI Bank is holding such subsidy received towards the above projects of the Company in Subsidy Reserve Fund
Account and shall adjust the above subsidy amount with the [ast instalments of credit facility granted for the respective projects,
thereby reducing the tenure of loan. The bank is not charging interest on the facility amount to the extent of the subsidy amount
released into 1CIC[ Bank account from the date of receipt of subsidy amount. The subsidy component when received will not
be treated as a prepayment and will not attract any prepayment penalty / charges. The company shall comply with all the loan
covenants of the bank and shall continue with the above credit facility from bank for at least 5 years as a condition for
adjustment of the said subsidy with the loan amount,

In accordance with Ind AS 20 "Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance”, the capital
subsidy is recognised as an income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the respective fixed asset to which such
grant relates. The grant relating to such fixed assets is as under:

Nature of lixed assets Amount of capital subsidy attributable (Rs.' Lakhs)
Land 28.66
Building 23541
Roads 17.90
Plant & Machinery 7.19
Electric Installations 237
Fire Fighting system 5.86
Total 297.39

The above subsidy has been recognised to the statement of profit and loss on the basis of useful life of each asset as above. A
subsidy of Rs 16.52 Lakhs and Rs 10.92 Lakhs has been recognised as grant income for the period ending 3 1st March, 2020
and 31st March, 2021 respectively and deferred grant carried forward is Rs 251.61 Lakhs (current portion: Rs 10.92 Lakhs) as
on 31st March, 2020 and Rs 240.69 Lakhs (current portion: Rs 10.92 Lakhs) as on 31st March, 2021.

4 During the year, the Company has capitalized the following expenses of revenue nature to the tangible fixed assets, being pre-
operative ¢xpenses related to projects:

As At As At
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
(Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
Balance brought forward 9.05 16.26
Add : Expenses Incurred during the year - =
Less : Classified to asset held for sale (refer note no. 10) - 721
Balance carried forward 9.05 9.05
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5 Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 "Employee Benefits” (specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7
of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015) are given below:

Defined Contribution Plan
Coniribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the year is as under:

Employer's Contribution towards Provident Fund (PF)
Employer's Contribution towards Family Pension Scheme (FPS)
Administration charges towards Provident Fund

Employer's Contribution towards Employee State Insurance (ES1)

Balance as per profit and loss statement

Defined Benefit Plan

A

Gratuity {Unfunded)

Year Ended Year Eonded

31 March, 2021 3 March, 2020
(Rs."Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
1.34 190

0.54 2.56

0.11 0.42

0.09 0.95

2.08 7.43

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes
each period of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up
the final obligation.

a)

b}

€)

4

e)

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year

Current service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (gain) loss

Benefit paid

Present value of obligation at the end of the vear

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year

Reconciliation of fair value of asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Current Liability
Non Current Liability
Amount recognised in balance sheet - asset / (liability)

Expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss during the year
Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Net cost debited to statement of profit and loss

(Gain)/ Loss recognised in other comprehensive income during the year
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions

Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjusiments
Recognised in other comprehensive income

Broad categories of plan assets as a percentage of total assets
Insurer managed funds

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
{Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
6.34 i2.52
0.79 1.03
0.43 0.97
{0.63) 191
{1.14) {10.09
5.79 6.34
Nil Nil
{0.07) {010
{(5.72) {6.24)
{5.79) {6.34)
0.79 1.03
0.43 0.97
123 2.00
- 0.00
- 0.84
{0.63) 1.07
{0.63) 1.91

Nil
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2)

h}

i)

»

k)

)]

m}

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2021 31 March. 2020
(Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
Actuarial Assumptions
Mortality Table (LIC) 100% of [ALM 100% of [ALM
2012-14 2012-14
Discount rate (per annurm) 6.76% 6.76%
Salary Escalation 7.50% 7.50%
Attrition Rate
0-30 5.00% 5.00%
31-44 2.00% 2.00%
45 and above 1.00% 1.00%
Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is 2s below:
Increase / {decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligations at the end of the year
Impact of change in discount rate
Impact due fo increase by 0.50% (0.39) (0.44)
Impact due to decrease by 0.50% 0.42 048
Impact of change in salary
Impact due to increase by 1% 0.42 0.48
Impact due to decrease by % (0.39) {0.44)
Matarity profile of defined benefit obligation
0-1 year 0.07 0.84
1-2 year 0.09 0.09
2-3 year 0.08 0.10
3-4 year 0.08 0.09
4-5 year 0.08 0.09
3-6 year 0.08 0.09
After 5th year 531 5.04
Total expected payments 5.79 6.34

I'he average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 13 years.

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation are after taking into account inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors.

Discount raie is based on the prevailing market yiclds available on Govemment bonds at the accounting date with a term that
matches that of the liabilities.

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that exirapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

6 Segment Reporting
Business Segments

A

The segment reporting of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Ind AS-108, "Operating Segment" (specified
under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies {[ndian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and other relevant provision of the Act). For management purposes, the Company is organised into
business units based on its products and services and has two reportable segments as follows:

Operating Segments:
Cargo handling agent services : CHA [discontinued segment, refer note no 26(7))
Storage and warehousing services | WAREHOUSING

The Board of Directors monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is
measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. Operating segments have been identified on the basis of the
nature of product/services and have been identified as per the quantitative criteria specified in the [ndAS.
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D Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment.
Revenue and expenses which relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have been

disclosed as "Others".

E Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax related assets,
borrowings and other assets and liabilities that can not be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as

"Olhl:l's".

F  There is no transfer of products between operating segments.

a) Revenue
Segment Revenue
Storage and warehousing services
Revenue from operations (continuing operations)
Cargo handling agent services

Revenue from operations (continuing and discontinued operations)

[nter segment sale
Unallocable
Total revenue

b} Results
Segment Profit
Storage and warehousing services
Segment operating profit (continuing operations)
Cargo handting agent services

Segment operating profit (continuing and discontinued operations)

Reconciliation of segment operating profit to operating profit

Unallocated:

Employce bencefits cxpense
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Other expenses (net of other income)
Operating Profit

Finance costs

Profit / (Loss) before tax

Income tax expense

Profit / (Loss) after tax

¢} Reconciliations to amounts reflected in the financial statements

Segment Assets

Storage and warehousing services

Segment operating assets (continuing operations)
Cargo handling agent services

Segment operating assets (continuing and discontinued operations)

Reconciliation of segment operating assets to total assets
Cash and bank balance
Others assets
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
Income tax refunds
Oihers
Total Assets

Segment Liabilities

Storage and warchousing services

Segment operating liabilities (continuing operations)
Cargo handling agent services

Segment operating liabilities (continving and discontinued operations)

As At As At
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
(Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs."Lakhs)
312.62 365.68
312.62 365.68
5.58 954,21
318.20 1.319.89
103.00 -
421.20 1.319.89
162.42 176.99
162.42 176.99
(2.7 73.63
159.65 250.62
{25.85) {(31.69)
(1.47) {1.46)
8.95 11.58
141.28 229.05
94 54 116.38
46.74 11267
46.74 112.67
2,708.17 2,821.78
2,708.17 2,821.78
24.67 237.41
273284 3.059.19
73.68 19.00
2.06 293
0.61 1.43
487 2373
1.07 14.71
2.858.97 3.120.99
452 84 424.17
452.84 424.17
4,45 172.714
457.29 596.91
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Reconciliation of segment operating liabilities to total liabilities
Borrowings

Others

Total liabilities

Non-current assets other than financial assets

Storage and warehousing services

Non-current assets other than financial assets (continuing operations)

Cargo handling agent services

Non-current assets other than financial assets (continuing and discontinued
operations)

Others

Capital Expenditure

Storage and warehousing services

Capital Expenditure (continuing operations)

Cargo handling agent services

Capital Expenditure (continuing and discontinued operations)
Others

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Storage and warehousing services

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses (continuing operations)

Cargo handling agent services

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses (continuing and discontinued
operations)

Others

Non-cash expenses other than depreciation

Storage and warchousing services

Non-cash expenses other than depreciation (continuing operations)

Cargo handling agent services

Non-cash expenses other than depreciation (continuing and discontinued
operations)

OGthers

Segment Revenue by location of customers
The following is the distribution of Company's revenue by geographical market,
regardless of where the Services are rendered:

Revenue - domestic market

Revenue - overseas market

Geographical Segment assets
Within India
Outside [ndia

Geographical Non-current operating assets
Within [ndia
Qutside India

As At As At
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
{Rs.'Lakhs} {Rs.'Lakhs)
895.36 1,053.34
12.12 26.10
1,364.77 1.676.35
10,00 15.00
10.00 15.00
10.00 15.00
0.27 0.10
0.27 0.10
0.27 0.10
- 1.54
0.27 1.64
90.49 125.59
90.49 125.59
= Q.15
9(.49 125.74
1.47 1.46
91.96 127.20
1.40 -
L.40 -
1.40 -
023 -
1.63 -
421.20 1.203.37
- 116.52
421.20 1,319.89
2.858.97 3,120.99
2.858.97 3,120.9%
2,453.06 2,568.04
2.453.06 2,568.04

Note: Non current assets for this purpose consist of Property, plant & equipment, intangible assets and other non current assets.
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Geographical Capital Expenditure
Within India
Cutside [ndia

Information about major customers having revenue more thao 10% of total turnover

Kuantum Papers Limited

Vishal SCM Pvi. Lid.

Kotak Agro Processing Pvi, Lid.
Shree Shubham Logistics Limited
M K Agrotech Private Limited
Wolkem India Limited

lnformation about services

Please refer to note no: 19 of the financial statements for information about services rendered by the Company.

7 Discontinued operations

As At As At
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
{Rs.' Lakhs) {Rs.'Lakhs)
027 1.64
0.27 1.64
103.00 -
73.86 <
73.06 <
51.06 -
- 136.53
- 289.76
300.98 426.29

During the year ended 31st March, 2021 the Company has discontinued the business of Cargo Handling Agent (CHA) services.
Accordingly, the Company has disclosed the net results of “"Cargo Handling Agent Services" as profit / (loss) from "Discontinued

Operations” in accordance with IndAS 105,

The profit and loss from discontinued operations is disclosed as below:

Revenue from operations
Clearing and forwarding services income

Other Income
Interest received on bank deposits at amortised cost
Miscellaneous income

Total Income

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages, bonus, commission and other benefits
Contribution towards PF, Family Pension and ESI
Gratuily expense

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs
Bank charges

Depreciation and amortization expenses
Depreciation of tangible assets

Other expenses

Port services and stevedoring charges

Cargo handling expenses at port

Storage and commodity handling charges at warehouse
Equipment hire charges

Office and warehouse rent

Rates and taxes

Repair and maintenance (others)

Legal and professional charges

Travelling and conveyance

Asg At As AL

31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

(Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
558 95421
0.10 z
0.66 z
6.34 95421

- 65.38

= 5.14

: 212

- 0.15
0.16 -

- 0.15

523 217.12

3.14 414,18

- 3.26

: 120.04

; 331

- 135

- 042

1.10 057

- 2.19
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As At As At

31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

(Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)

Transportation charges - 32.93
Communication expenses - 1.16
Electricity expenses - 0.36
Advertisement, publicity and business promotion - 079
Foreign exchange fluctuations - 1.19
Miscetlaneous expenses / (Income) {0.52) 277
Total Expenses 2.1 880.58
Net profit / (loss) from discontinued operations (2.77) 73.63

8 Related party transactions
The relaied parties as per the terms of Ind AS-24, "Related Party Disclosures®, (specified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2015) are disclosed below;

A

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(i)

(T

Names ol related parties and description of relationship :

The Holding Company:-
Tinna Trade Limited {holding company upto 30-Mar-21})

Enterprises that are an associate of the Company or in respect of which Company is an associate:-
S1AM Stock Holdings Limited, Mauritius
Insurexcelience Advisors Private Limited

Names of other related parties with whom fransactions have taken place during the year:

Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence
T P Buildtech private limited

Kriti Estates Private Limited

INlingworth Advisors LLP

Tinna Rubber and Infrastructure Limited
Shree Shubham Logistics Limited

Punarvasu Financial Services Privaie Limited
Fratelli Wines Private Limited
Insurexcellence Advisors Privaie Limited
BGK Shipping LLP

Krofta Engineering Limited

Key Management Personnef

Mr. Gaurav Sekhri

Mr. Maneesh Mansingka

Ms. Nishita Shah

Mr. Ashish Madan

Ms. Sanvali Kaushik wef Nov 7, 2019
Ms. Monika Gupta- Company Secretary
Mr. Gauray Jain wef Nov 7, 2019

Relatives of key management personnet
Smt. Sobha Sekhri
Smt. Pooja Sekhri

Smt. Aarti Sekhri
As At As At
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
{Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
Transactions during the year
Loans repaid
Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence
Kriti Estates Private Limited 10.00 70.00
[nsurexcellence Advisors Private Limited - 37.00
107,00
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As At As At
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
{Rs,'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
(ii) Loan given and taken back
Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence
Kriti Estates Private Limited 20.00 -
20.00 -
(iii) Service income (excluding service tax / GST) from:
The Holding Company
Tinna Trade Limited (holding company upto 30-Mar-21)
Clearing and forwarding services income {discontinued operations) - 112,135
& 112.15
Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant infloence
Shree Shubham Logistics Limited
Warehouse rental and storage income 51.06 93.78
Tinna Rubber and Infrastructure Limited
Clearing and forwarding services income (discontinued operaiions) - 94.55
Punarvasu Financial Services Private Limited
Warchouse rental and storage income 0.04 0.25
Fratelli Wines Private Limited
Clearing and forwarding services income (discontinued operations) - 0.50
Grther receipts from warehousing operations 248 2.55
T P Buildtech Private Limited
Clearing and forwarding services income (discontinued operations) - 50.60
BGK Shipping LLP
Ctearing and forwarding services income (discontinued operations) 5.58 =
59.16 242,22
{iv) Expenses paid
Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence
Tinna Rubber and Infrastructure Limited
Corporate guarantee fees 392 3.92
Insurexcellence Advisors Private Limited
Corporate guarantee fees 391 391
Mr. Maneesh Mansingka
Personal guarantee fees 391 391
Mr. Gaurav Sekhri
Personal guarantee fees 3.91 391
15.65 13.65
(v) Reimbursement of expenses received
The Holding Company
Tinna Trade Limited {holding company upto 30-Mar-21)
Cargo handling charges {discontinued operations) 803 47.81
Travelling and conveyance expenses - 0.17
8.03 47.98

The Company has recovered actual cargo bandling charges and travelling expenses by way of debit note from its Holding
Company, M/s Tinna Trade Limited. The service income from said company is disclosed separately above.

Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence
Tinna Rubber and [nfrastructure Limited

Cargo handling charges (discontinued operations) - 1.50
Fratelli Wines Private Limited

Cargo handling charges (discontinued operations) - 0.01
T P Buildtech Private Limited

Cargo handling charges {discontinued operations) - 8083
BGK Shipping LLP

Cargo handling charges {discontinued operations)




B.G.K Infrastructure Deevelopers Privatre Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2021

As At As At
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2620
{Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs})
Shree Shubham Logistics Limited
Electricity expenses 0.69 =
Telephone expenses 0.15 -
1.77 88.39

The Company has recovered actual expenses by way of debit note from its Associate Company, M/s BGK Shipping LLP and

Shree Shubham Logistics Limited. The service income from said company is disclosed separately above.

(vi) Reimbursement of expenses paid:
The Holding Company
Tinna Trade Limited (holding company upto 30-Mar-21)

Cargo handling charges {discontinued operations) £ 8.3
r 8.31
(vii) Interest paid
Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence
Insurexcellence Advisors Private Limited = 1.58
Kriti Estates Private Limited 0.05 5.34
0.05 6.92
(vii) Interest received
Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence
Kriti Estates Private Limited 0,25 -
0.25 -
(viii) Salary Paid
Key Management Personoel
Ms. Monika Gupta 0.31 0.92
Mr. Gauray Jain 19.14 6.41
19.45 7.33
(viii) Purchase of goods (excluding service tax / GST) from:
Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence
Krofta Engineering Limited 101.97 -
101.97 -
{viii) Income from disposal of Fixed Assets
Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence
B.G.K. Shipping LLP 0.69 -
0.6% -
{ix) Outstanding Balance Receivable
The Holding Company
Tinna Trade Limited (holding company upto 30-Mar-21) - 67.93
Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence
Tinna Rubber and [nfrastructure Limited - 3263
T P Buildtech Private Limited - 1.52
Fratelli Wines Private Limited 0.70 0.79
Shree Shubham Logistics Limited 4.33 6.91
5.23 109.78
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(x) Outstanding Balance Payable

Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence
Kriti Estates Private Limited
Insurexcellence Advisors Private Limited
Tinna Rubber and Infrastructure Limited
Mr Maneesh Mansingka
Mr Gaurav Sekhri
Mr Gaurav Jain
Ms Monika Gupta

As At
31 March, 2021
{Rs."Lakhs)

As At
31 March, 2020
{Rs."Lakhs)

14.31
372
4.42
352
352
0.50
0.05

30.94

a) The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement oceurs in cash. A corporate guarantee of Rs
1,565 Lakhs {March 31, 2020: Rs 1,565 Lakhs) has been received by the Company from Tinna Rubber and Infrastructure
Limited and Insurexcellence Advisors Private Limited (related parties). For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has
not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the retated party and the market in which the related party operates.

b) All the liabilities for post retirement benefits being ‘Gratuity' and ‘Leave Encashment’ are provided on an actuarial basis for the
Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to Key management personnel are not included above.

9 The following table summarises movement in indebtness as on the reporting date:

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

{Rs.'Lakhs)
Farticulars As at April 1, Net Cashflow Classified as Change in fair As at March 31,
2020 current yalues 2021
Non current borrowings
Term loan from bank 885.94 {123.00) 301 670,95
Current borrowings
Repayable on demand
From related parties 14.81 (10.00} (4.81) -
From others 26.21 {23.000 (3.21) -
Total 926.96 (156.00) {5.01) 670,95
(Rs.'Lakhs}
Particulars As at April 1, Net Cashflow Classified as Change in fair  As at March 31,
2019 current values 2020
Non cumment borrowings
Term loan from bank 988.43 {152.50) 3.01 88594
Current borrowings
Repayable on demand
From related partics 129.20 (107.00) (7.39) 14.81
From others 63.18 (35.00} (197 26.21
Total 1,180.81 {294.50) 926.%6
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10 Fair value measurements
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those
with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial instruments by As At As At As At As At
category 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

(Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs.'Lakhs} (Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs.'Lakhs)

Financial assets at amortized cost

Cash and bank balances 163.68 109.88 163.68 109.88
Other financial assets {current) 0.25 9.05 0.25 9.05
Other financial assets (non-current) 298.32 29832 298.32 20832
Trade receivables 3823 22265 38.23 222.65
500.48 639.90 500.48 639.90
Financial Liabilities at amortized cost
Trade payables 395 134.77 395 134.77
Borrowings (non-current) 670,95 88594 670.95 885.94
Borrowings (current) S 41.02 - 41.02
Other financial liabilities (non-current) - 5.66 - 5.66
Other financial liabilities (current) 284.75 250.20 284.75 250.20
959.65 1,317.59 959.65 1,317.59

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

1)

2)

3)

4

The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well as cther non-current financial
liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. In addition to being sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the forecast cash flows or the discount rate,
the fair value of the equity instruments is also sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the growth rates, The valuation requires
management to use unobservable inpuis in the model, of which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables
below. Management regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and
determines their impact on the total fair value,

The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using Discounted cash flow method
using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as
at 31st March, 2021 was assessed to be insignificant,

Long-term receivables / payables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, risk factors, individual
creditworthiness of the counterparty and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are
taken into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2021, are as shown below:

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:

Level 1: quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market
data
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Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on March 31, 2021:

Carrying Fair Value
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)

Assets carried at amortized cost for which fair
value are disclosed
Cash and bank balances 163.68 - - 163.68
Other financial assets (non-current) 298.32 - - 298.32
Other financial assets (current) 025 - - 025
Trade receivables 3823 - - 38.23

500.48 - - 50048
Liabilities carried at amortized cost for which
fair valoe are disclosed
Trade payables 395 - - 395
Borrowings (non-current) 670.95 - - 670.93
Borrowings (current) - - - -
Other financial liabilities (non current) - - = =
Other financial liabilities (current) 28475 - - 284.75

959.65 959.65
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on March 31, 2020;

Carrying Fair Value
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs,'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)

Assets carried at amortized cost for which Fair
value are disclosed
Cash and bank balances 109 .88 - - 109.88
Other financial assets {non-current) 29832 - - 29832
Other financial assets {current) 9.05 - - 9.05
Trade receivables 22265 - - 222,65

63990 639.90
Liabilities carried at amortized cost for which
fair value are disclosed
Trade payables 13477 - - 134.77
Borrowings {non-current) 885.94 - s 885.94
Borrowings {current) 41.02 - - 41.02
Other financial liabilities {non current) 5.66 - : 5.66
Other financial liabilities {current) 250.20 - - 250.20

1.317.59 1,317.59

Note:

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, rade payables, bank overdrafis and other current

liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the shoni-term maturities of these instruments.

11 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilitics, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include

loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its operations.

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its busihess strategies. The Company is

exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior professionals working to manage the financial
risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors. This
process provides assurance to Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk-taking activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company policies

and Company risk objective,
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The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized as below:

{a)

(b)

( 01 e o)

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market prices comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks , such as equity price
risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include loans and borrowings, deposits, and foreign
cuirency receivables and payables. The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31 2021
The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement
cobligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss item is the effect
of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as of
March 31. 2021,

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in foreign currency). The Company evaluates exchange
rate ¢xposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows established risk management policies.

Foreign currency risk sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant. The impact on the Company profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.
Foreign currency exposures recognised by the Company that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as

31 March, 2021 Impact on loss and equity
Currency Currency Foreign Indian Rupees Increase/ (Decrease)
Symbol Currency .
1% increase 1% decrease
(S) (Rs.'Lakhs)
COther financial liabilities Uss - = - -
31 March, 2020 Impact on loss and equity
1
Corrency Carrency Foreign Indian Rupees nerease/ (Decrease)
Symbol Currency 1% increase 1% decrease
%) {Rs.'Lakhs) * *
Other Onamcial liubilivies uss 21,248.08 16.02 Rs0.16 Lakhs  Rs-0.16 Lakhs
Trade receivables Uss 3,030.50 228 Rs-002Lakhs  Rs0.02 Lakhs

Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading
io a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

(i) Trade Receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's ¢stablished policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management, Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit raring
scorecard and individual credit timits are defined it accordance with this assessment. Qutstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored. Qut of the trade receivables, the Company has 8-10 customers that owed the Company Rs 38.23 Lakhs
and accounted for {00.00% (38.23 Lakhs + 38.23 Lakhs) of the total irade receivables as on March 31, 2021 (March 31,
2020: Rs 198,72 Lakhs and accounted for 89.25% (198.72 Lakhs + 222.65 Lakhs))

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on trade receivables by lifetime expected credit loss method based
on provisicn mairix. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carcying value of each class of financial
assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to
trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent

(ii} Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in
accordance with the Company’s palicy. [nvestments of surplus funds are made in bank deposits and other risk free securities.
The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential
failure to make payments.
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The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2021 is the carrying
amounts . The Company’s maximum exposure relating to financial is noted in lquidity table below. Trade Receivables and
other financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor failing to engage in
the repayment plan with the Company.

As At As At
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
(Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs.'Lakhs)

Financial assets for which allowance is measured using 12
months Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)

Cash and cash equivalents 7713 26.74
Other bank balances 86.55 83.14
Others non-current financial assets 298.32 29832
Others current financial assets (.25 9.05

462.25 417.25

Financial assets for which allowance is measured wsing Life
time Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)

Trade receivables {gross) 38.23 22265
3823 222.65

Most of the customers are farmers and corporate clients of agricultural commodities and as per past experience, there has been no
credit loss on account of customer's inability to pay i.e. there has been no material debts in past and therefore, no provision on this
account has been considered. Provisions for expected delay in realization of trade receivables beyond contractual terms, the group
has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables on a provision matrix.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables has been considered from the date the invoice falls due

As At As At
Particulars 31-Mar-21 3t-Mar-20
(Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
Within credit period 4.86 3834
Less than | year 3337 182 48
1to 2 years - 1 83
2 to 3 years - -
Over 3 years - -
Total trade receivables 38.23 222.65
As At As At
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
{Rs."'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
Expected Credit Loss
Within credit peried - -
Less than | year - -
I to 2 years - -
2 to 3 years - -
Over 3 years 100% 100%

Provision for receivables

Less than 1 year - -
10 2 years - _
2to 3 years - -
Over 3 years g -
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{c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able 1o seule or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable
price. The Company's objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and liquidity requirements.
The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system, It maintains adequate source
of financing through financing from Companies within the group or others. Management monitors the Company's liquidity
position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company assessed the conceniration of risk with
respect to its debt and concluded it to be low

Matority profile of financial liabilities
The table below provides the details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the ceporting date
based on contractual undiscounted payments.

As at Merch 31, 2021 Less than | year 1105 years Total
(Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs.'Lakhs)
Trade payables 395 - 3.95
Bomrowings - 670.95 670.95
Other non current financial liabilities - - 5
Other current financial liabilities 28475 - 28475
As at March 31, 2020 Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years Total
(Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
Trade payables 134.77 - 134.77
Borrowings 41.02 885.94 926.96
Other non current financial liabilities - 5.00 5.66
Other current financial liabilitics 250.20 - 250.20

{d} Interest rate risk
Interest risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company’s exposure 1o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term
debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed
and variable rate loans and borrowings.

The following table provides a break up of Company's fixed and floating rate borrowings:

As At As At
Particulars 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
{Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs.'Lakhs)
Floating rate bomrowings 89535 1,012.32
Fixed rate borrowings - 41.02
Total borrowings 895.35 1,053.34

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s loss is affected through the impact on floating rate
borrowings, as follows:

Actual amount of

Financial Year interest paid Increase/ decrease in basis points Effect on loss
(Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)

201920 81.04 +/-50bps +3.99/-3.99
202021 74.27 +/«50bps +3.70/-3.70

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the cumently observable market
environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior years.

12 Capital Management

For the purposes of Company's capital management, Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company and all
other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital
structure and maximize shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31,
2021 and March 31, 2020.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt, .

0
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Particulars

Loans and borrowings (et of cash and cash equivalents)
Net debt

Equity
Total capital

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio {net debt + capital and net debt)

13 (a) Eaming in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis)
Service Income

{b) There is no expenditure incurred in Foreign Currency {on accrual basis) during the year
(¢ ) There is no carning and payment of dividend in foreign currency during the year.
14 Earnings per share
a) Basic Earnings Per Share
Numerator for eamings per share
Profit/ (loss) from continuing operations (Rs.'Lakhs)

Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations [refer note 26({7)] {Rs.'Lakhs)
Profit/ (loss) for the year from continuing and discontinued operations {Rs.'Lakhs)

Denominator for carnings per share

Weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.)
Basic eamings per share (one equity share of Rs.10/- each)

from continving operations (Rs.)

from discontinued operations (Rs.)

from continving and discontinued operations (Rs.)

b) Diluted Earnings per share
Numerator for earnings per share
Profit/ (loss} from continuing operations {Rs.'Lakhs)
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operaiions [refer note 26(7)] (Rs.'Lakhs)
Profit/ (loss) for the year from continuing and discontinued operations (Rs.'Lakhs)

Denominator for eamings per share

Weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the year {Nos.)
Diluted earnings per share (one equity share of Rs. 10/~ each)
from continuing operations {Rs.)
from discontinued operations (Rs.)
from continuing and discontinued operations (Rs.)

As At As At
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
(Rs.'Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
%18.22 1,026.61
818.22 1,026.6]
1,494.20 1,444 64
1,494.20 1,444 64
231243 2.471.24
35.38 41.54
As At As At
31-Mar-21 J1-Mar-20
(Rs."Lakhs) (Rs.'Lakhs)
- 116.52
As At As At
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
49.51 39.04
(2.77) 73.63
46.74 112.67
1.39.72,300 1,39,72,300
0.35 0.28
{0.02) 0.53
0.33 0.81
As At As At
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
49,51 39.04
(2.77) 73.63
46.74 112.67
1,39,72 300 1,39,72,300
0.35 028
(0.02) 0.53
0.33 0.81

MNote: There are no instruments issued by the Company which have effect of dilution of basic earning per share.
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15 Deferred Tax Assets (net) as on 31st March, 2021 is as follows:

As At As At

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

{Rs.'Lakhs) {Rs.'Lakhs)

Deferred tax Asset/ (Liabilities)

On account of difference in WDV of property, plant & equipment under Income Tax Act (144,34 (137.73)

On account of difference in certain payments under Income Tax Act 2.16 2.84

On account of carried forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation 211.74 212.63

On account of IND AS Adjustments 4.90 4.39
74.46 82.13

The deferred tax asset of Rs 74.46 Lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs 82.13 Lakhs) has not been recognised since the probability that
sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised is not certain.

16 Impact of Covidl19

World Health Organization (WHO) declared outbreak Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) a global pandemic on March 11, 2020,
Consequent to this, Government of India declared lockdown on March 24, 2020 which has impacted the business activities of the
Company. On account of this, the Company has prepared cash flow projections, and also assessed the recoverability of receivables,
contract assets, factored assumptions used in annual impairment testing of intangible assets having indifinite usefu life, using the
various internal and external information up to the date of approval of these financial statements. On the basis of evaluations and
current indicators of future economic conditions , the company expects 1o recover the carrying amount of these assets and does not
anticipate any impairment to these financial and non-financiat assets. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material
changes to future economic conditions.

17 Figures relating to 31st March 2020 has been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable with current year
figures.

18 The figurcs have been rounded off to nearest rupees in lakhs with upto two decimals.
19 Note No.1 to 26 form integrat part of the balance sheet and statement of profit and loss.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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